TOWN OF WARE

Planning & Community Development
126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082
(413) 967-9648 ext. 120

PLANNING BOARD

MEETING AGENDA
Location: Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Room
Town Hall, 126 Main Street, Ware, MA 01082 =] W=
Date & Time: Thursday, July 7th, 2022 @ 7:00 PM I_[?j &,@EWW‘E
U Jun 30 2022
Digital Participation: TOWN CLERK'S OFFICE
Phone number:  929-205-6099 TIME RECEIVED 29 ; 55 A4
Meeting ID: 784 604 1861 ‘ (/
Passcode: 01082

Instructions for call-in option: at or before 7pm call the phone number above and when
prompted enter the Meeting ID number. The platform is Zoom Meetings. Join online:

https://zoom.us/join

Pledge of Allegiance
= Administrative

o Approval of minutes from June 16%, 2022

» Scheduled Appearances
o Minor Site Plan Review — McDonald’s USA, LLC (117-119 West Street)

» Applicant is seeking minor site plan approval to reconfigure the existing
single lane drive-thru to include two lanes, two order points/digital menu
boards, and two digital pre-browse boards.

= Public Hearings
o CONTINUED - Permit Fee Schedule Hearing
» The purpose of this hearing is to review, discuss, and possibly amend the
. current permit fee schedule for applications pertaining to the Planning Board.
= New Business
"o Review of Newly Proposed Subdivision Regulations _

* The “Authority”, “Purpose”, “Definitions”, section 1 (general), and section 2
(procedure for the submission and approval of plans) will be reviewed (pages
4-18).

o Any matters that are brought up that the Chair did not anticipate including on the -
agenda prior to this meeting.

» Town Planner Update

The next Planning Board meeting will be held July 21, 2022.

At the time of posting, the agenda items listed above are what is reasonably anticipated by the Chairman to be discussed at this meeting. Other items not
listed may be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. The general public is invited to this and all meetings of the Ware Planning Board.



TOWN OF WARE

Planning & Community Development
126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082
t. 413.967.9648 ext. 120
Planning Board
Meeting Minutes from
Thursday, June 16th, 2022
Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Room, Town Hall

Planning Board Members in Attendance: Rick Starodoj, Chairman
Ed Murphy, Vice-Chairman (remote)
Kenneth Crosby (remote)
Elizabeth Hancock, Alternate

Board Members Absent: Joseph Knight
Nancy Talbot, Clerk
Staff Members in Attendance: Stuart Beckley, Town Manager (remote)

Rob Watchilla, PCD Dept. Director

Laura White, Admin. Assistant to PCD Dept. (remote)
Members of the Public in Attendance: Jodie Chartier

Claudia Kadra

John Soper

Richard Roznoy

Elio Qorri (remote)

“Bob”

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman R. Starodoj called the meeting to order at 7:00pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
ADMINISTRATIVE

Approval of Minutes from Planning Board meeting on Thursday, June 2", 2022.

Motion made by E. Murphy to approve the minutes from June 2", Seconded by K. Crosby. No
additional discussion.

R. Starodoj Aye
E. Murphy Aye
N. Talbot Absent
K. Crosby Aye
J. Knight Absent

All in favor. Approved 3/0/2.

R. Watchilla suggested E. Hancock be appointed as a voting member for the Definitive Subdivision
Review.

E. Hancock informed to Board she was told by S. Beckley Alternates are only able to vote on Special
Permits.



ANR-2022-05: Greenwich Plains Road

R. Watchilla informed the Board of the proposed ANR (Approval Not Required), stating the property
complies with the dimensional regulations in its zoning district and the house complies with the required
setbacks.

Motion made by E. Murphy to approve ANR-2022-05. Seconded by K. Crosby. No additional
discussion.

R. Starodoj Aye
E. Murphy Aye
N. Talbot Absent
K. Crosby Aye
J. Knight Absent

All in favor. Approved 3/0/2.
OLD BUSINESS
Fieldstone Commons (Definitive Subdivision Review)

R. Watchilla informed the Board of comments submitted by the Director of Public Health, Andrea Crete,
which stated no concerns regarding the proposed subdivision.

R. Watchilla read the waivers requested for the Preliminary Subdivision, confirming with E. Qorri, of
Bertin Engineering, which waivers were still being requested.

The following waivers were removed, as they are no longer applicable to the proposed
subdivision:

e A right of way of forty (40) feet.
e A street length of six hundred fifty-five (655) feet.

The following waivers were still being requested as part of the Definitive Subdivision:

Storm-water facilities are not needed.

Sanitary facilities are not needed.

Water facilities are not needed.

Sidewalks are required, No sidewalks are present on the referenced street.

The Board agreed with the conditions and waivers of the Definitive Subdivision Plans.
J. Chartier inquired about access to Howard Road, which runs through the property.

R. Watchilla stated he would add a condition to the Definitive Subdivision Decision Document regarding
access to Howard Road. The Town maintains this road.

Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 6/16/2022, Page 2



Motion made by K. Crosby to approve the Definitive Subdivision with the conditions and
waivers discussed by the Board. Seconded by E. Murphy. No additional discussion.

R. Starodoj Aye
E. Murphy Aye
N. Talbot Absent
K. Crosby Aye
J. Knight Absent
All in favor. Approved 3/0/2.
R. Watchilla informed the applicant of the appeal period.

J. Soper stated he would like to expedite the recording process to be fair to the people buying the house
on his property.

R. Starodoj stated nothing can be done to expedite the process and advised the applicant anything done
within the appeal period would be done at his own risk.

The applicant thanked the Board and left the meeting.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Permit Fee Schedule Hearing (continued discussion)

R. Starodoj requested to review the comparison of fees between Ware and surrounding towns.

R. Watchilla recommended raising the level 1 Special Permit fee from $250 to $275 to cover the cost of
advertising. He also recommended adding an additional fee of $0.67 per abutter.

R. Starodoj stated the application fee should not include the advertisement cost, the applicant should be
responsible for the advertisement costs.

K. Crosby stated the application fee could be lowered, but the advertisement costs should be the
responsibility of the applicant, as the cost varies too frequently for the Board to continue to review and
amend.

E. Murphy suggested changing the application fee to $150 and adding the additional fee per abutter.
The Board discussed having three tiers instead of the two currently in place. The first tier would be for
Accessory Uses, the next would be for everything currently covered under the level one fee, and the last

would be for everything currently covered under the level two fee.

The Board discussed creating a list of Accessory Uses that would be covered under the new fee tier. The
Board also discussed possible fees for each tier.

R. Starodoj suggested consulting with the Ware Business and Civic Association.
R. Watchilla suggested raising the fee for Definitive Subdivisions.
R. Starodoj asked what is covered by these fees.

Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 6/16/2022, Page 3



K. Crosby asked if the fees of other towns cover the cost of an engineering review by a town engineer.
R. Starodoj stated those fees are usually separate.
The Board discussed the current fees.

E. Hancock stated the Special Permit Procedures should be changed to say the Town is mailing postcards
now and not Certified Mail.

R. Watchilla stated the law now states the Town cannot force the applicant to pay for Certified Mail.
The Board discussed how to prove postcards are mailed to abutters.

E. Hancock suggested also adding to the Procedures that postcards must be mailed at least two weeks
prior to Public Hearings to give enough time for all abutters to receive them.

R. Watchilla stated any changes would require a Public Hearing.

Motion made by K. Crosby to continue the Public Hearing on the Permit Fee Schedule at the next
meeting on Thursday, July 7%, 2022. Seconded by E. Murphy.

R. Starodoj Aye
E. Murphy Aye
N. Talbot Absent
K. Crosby Aye
J. Knight Absent
All in favor. Approved 3/0/2.
NEW BUSINESS

Discussion on future zoning amendments and bylaws to be considered for Fall Special Town
Meeting

Scenic Road Bylaw

R. Watchilla reminded the Board they are planning to meet with the Historical Commission at the
July 21%, 2022 meeting.

Right to Farm Bylaw

R. Watchilla stated there were no updates regarding the Right to Farm Bylaw, as there did not
seem to be much interest from the Board of Selectmen.

R. Starodoj requested R. Watchilla discuss it with the Board of Selectmen again.
Tractor Supply Zoning Change
R. Watchilla informed the Board the representative for Tractor Supply was sent a copy of the

petition against using the location, but he has not heard back from the representative yet.

Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 6/16/2022, Page 4



Subdivision Roads

R. Starodoj asked if any Subdivision Roads have been accepted by the Town.

R. Watchilla stated he would speak with the Town Manager regarding these roads.
Marijuana Social Consumption

R. Starodoj stated it may be too complicated to get on Town Meeting this early.
Urban Fill

R. Watchilla suggested prohibiting Urban Fill in the Aquifer Protection and Wetland Protection
Overlay Districts.

R. Starodoj also suggested not allowing it in any area not serviced by the municipal water supply.
R. Watchilla stated he would do more research on this topic.
Marijuana Delivery

R. Watchilla informed the Board the Town Attorney recommended adding language regarding
Courier Services to the Marijuana section of the Bylaw.

Large-Scale Battery Storage Moratorium

R. Watchilla informed the Board the Town recently applied for a grant through the Pioneer
Valley Planning Commission to fund planning assistance for a study to gather feedback from
surrounding towns to create draft zoning bylaw language for the Town. This will most likely
start in the Fall, so it may not make it onto the Fall Special Town Meeting.

TOWN PLANNER UPDATE
Bank Street Reconstruction Project
R. Watchilla informed the Board the Bank Street Reconstruction Project is now 75% complete.

The paving has concluded as the sidewalk work continues. The sewer main on Park Avenue,
from Bank Street to North Street, is being replaced and will be covered with a new topcoat. The
project is set to be completed on July 1%, 2022.

West Street Corridor Study

R. Watchilla stated the Pare Corporation will be presenting their findings from the West Street
Corridor Study to the Board of Selectmen on Tuesday, June 21%, 2022. All Planning Board
members and members of the public are encouraged to attend. R. Watchilla also added there will
be a technical memo provided by the consultants in the coming weeks, which he will present to
the Board at a future meeting, along with updates on the major findings of the study. This project
has satisfied the grant conditions in terms of being implemented by June 30™, 2022.

Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 6/16/2022, Page 5



R. Starodoj suggested looking into what will be done with the parking lot at the Country Bank building,
which was recently purchased by the Town. He asked if it would remain public parking or if the plan was
to use it for police officer parking only.

R. Starodoj asked about what grants are available for residents looking for fuel assistance, stating fuel
prices could cause major problems for heating bills this winter.

R. Watchilla stated National Grid has an assistance program, as well as Community Action Pioneer
Valley.

ADJOURN
Motion made by E. Murphy to adjourn the meeting at 8:09pm. Seconded by K. Crosby.
R. Starodoj Aye
E. Murphy Aye
N. Talbot Absent
K. Crosby Aye
J. Knight Absent
All in favor. Approved 3/0/2.
NEXT PLANNING BOARD MEETING DATE:

Thursday, July 7', at 7:00pm.

Minutes from June 16", 2022
Minutes Approved on:

Respectfully submitted by, Starodoj
Laura White Murphy
Administrative Assistant Talbot
Planning & Community Development
Knight
Crosby

Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 6/16/2022, Page 6



























TOWN OF WARE

Planning Department
126 Main Street
Ware, Massachusetts 01082
t. 413-967-9648 ext. 118

PROPOSED FEE SCHEDULE
Planning Department Application Fees, 2020
Current Proposed
Application Fee Deposit Fee Deposit
ANR S50 + $25/additional lot none S50 + $25/additional lot none
Preliminary Subdivision $500 none $500 none
Definitive Subdivision $750 + $50/Iot none $750 + $50/lot + $.67 per abutter none
Subdivision Amendment $750 none $750 + $.67 per abutter none
Minor Site Plan Review $100 none $100 none
. . . $750 - up to 40,000 sf GFA $750 - up to 40,000 sf GFA
Major Site Plan Review . none X none
$750 + $.02/sf GFA - anything larger $750 + $.02/sf GFA - anything larger
Special Permit - Level 1 $250 none $150 + $.67 per abutter none
Special Permit - Level 1A N/A N/A $100 + $.67 per abutter none
Special Permit - Level 2 $750 none $750 + $.67 per abutter none
Variance $250 none $250 none
Appeal (to ZBA) $250 none $250 none
Comprehensive Permit (40B) $750 $5,000 $750 $5,000
Engineering Review NA $1,500 N/A $1,500
$1,000 or $1.00/If $1,000 or $1.00/If

Construction Inspection* NA roadway, whichever is NA roadway, whichever is

greater greater

Notes:

Planning Board will require applicants to be billed directly for advertising costs (from Turley) averaging about $250

Variances, Appeals, and Comprehensive Permits only apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals (cannot be voted upon by Planning Board)
* for new subdivision roads



Special Permit Fee Breakdown

Zoning
Special Permit Type Section Fee Level Notes
nonconformities 1.9 1
"extension" of district 3.3.2 1 zoning district boundaries diving a parcel
1 unless specific use is a
use table 4.1 P
level 2
. . breeding of dogs or cats (4+); livestock,
residential accessory uses .
. 4.4.1 1A poultry; home business; customary home
(excluding accessory apartments) .
occupation; home based contractor
accessory apartments 4.4.1.E 1
business accessory uses; drive-up facilities
commercial/industrial 442/ . . y P -
1 in a bank or retail store; storage buildings;
accessory uses 4.4.3 . .
industrial accessory uses
housing unit on another parcel; occupancy of
temporary uses 4.5 1 one housing unit on parcel where second is
under construction
new tower or alteration of
. L existing tower (structure . L
wireless communication 4.8.2 . ) adding to existing tower; new tower
only) is level 2, anything
else is level 1
wind energy facilities 4.8.4 1 site plan required, will also pay that fee
earth removal 4.8.5 2
adult entertainment 4.8.6 2
. o for certain uses and activities in the flood
floodplain overlay district 4.9.1 2
zone
for certain uses and activities in the aquifer
aquifer protection 49.2 2 . o 4
protection overlay district
to allow connection of detached accessory
detached accessory structures 5.2.2 1 structure to primary structure that creates a
nonconformity to setback requirements
to allow a structure to exceed the height
exceed height 5.3.2 1 J

limits of table 5.3.1

common driveways 6.6 1




Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE
SUBDIVISION OF LAND

TOWN OF WARE, MASSACHUSETTS




Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

Table of Contents

AUTHORITY ettt bbb bbb bbb bbbttt 4
PURPOSE . ...ttt bbb bbbttt ettt bttt bbb enenis 4
DEFINITIONS ...ttt ettt 5
SECTION 1. GENERAL. ..ottt sttt 11
1.1.  Limitation of One Dwelling Unit per Lot........ccovirirnnnrririrsisisieeieeee e 11
1.2.  Compliance with Other Permits Required.........c.cocovnrrrinriniinieeeeccecccccceeeeeene 11
1.3.  Plan Believed Not to Require Approval (ANR) .......cccovrrirrieieieieecceeccceeeeseeeene 11
SECTION 2. PROCEDURE FOR THE SUBMISSION AND APPROVAL OF PLANS.......ccccceunuene. 14
2.2, Pre-SubmisSion REVIEW ........c.ciiiiiiiiiiiieiesee et 14
2.3 Preliminary Plan ...t 14
2.4, DefiNitIVE Plan......ooo ettt 18
SECTION 3. DESIGN STANDARDS ......cootitiiiteicieieieieicitititttt ettt 44
BT SIS e bbbt 44
3.2, BASEMENTS .t 48
3.3, Protection of Natural FEAtUres ...t 48
4. OPON SPACES...cueiuieiieiirieett ettt b e bbbttt b e bbbttt et s ene 48
3.5. Stormwater Management & Erosion and Sediment Control...........cccooeiinnniinninenen. 49
3e6.  SEWEIAGE ...ttt na et 51
3.7 WV ATt b e bbbttt b e bt b e n et e e s 51
3.8.  Access Through Another Municipality ......c.cocccorreuiinnieiiec e 51
3.9.  Relationship t0 TOWN PlaNns ......ccceiiiiiirieicceees e 52
SECTION 4. REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS IN AN APPROVED SUBDIVISION ........cccccoeevninininene. 53
4.1.  General REQUIFEMENTS ....cooeiiieiieieieee ettt ettt snne 53
4.2. Clearing and Grubbing of Right of Way .......cccviiiiiiicccccce e 55
4.3. Required Improvements Prior to Road Construction .........cccceceeevenieeneenieeneenecsieeen, 55
4.4, Foundation Of ROGAWAY .....c.cceiuiuiiiiiirirerrrss ettt 55
4.5.  Surfacing of ROAAWAY .....c.c.c.cuiuiuiiiiiinirinrr sttt 57
B.6.  BEIMNS ..o e 58
A.7.  DIraiNAgE ..ccooiiiiiiiiietee e 58



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

A.8.  SIAEWAIKS ... e 60
4.9, Grass SHHPS ...oociiiiiee e 61
A.T0. STrEET SIGNS ottt bbb 61
417, SErEEt LIghTiNg ..o ettt 61
4.12. Monuments and Markers ..ottt 61
B3, UTHITIES o 62
4.14. Trees and Plantings ......c.cccciiiiiiiiinsr bbbttt 62
A5, PathS e 65
4.16.  Fire ProteCtion ... 65
A.17.  GUAN RAIIS .ottt 65
4.18.  Clearing Up of Right-0f-Way.........ccoiiiiccecceecee e 65
4.19.  FiNal Clean Up ..ottt 65
SECTION 5. ADMINISTRATIONS ..ottt 66
5.0, INSPECLIONS ..ttt ettt h et bt et b e bbbt et et e bt et e sbeeate b 66
5.2, Wavier of ComPlianCe ..ottt 67
5.3t FES e 67
5.4, INTErPretation ... 68
5.9, AdMINistrative FOIMS .....c.cciiiiiiiiii e 69
5,10, APPEAIS ettt ettt nene 69
510 AMENAMENTS. ..ttt ettt ettt e s b 69
5.12.  Invalidation by State Law ...t 69
SECTION 6. FEES......o ettt bbbttt 70
6.1, FEe SChedUIE ..o 70
6.2.  Hiring "Outside ConsUaNTS” ........c.coviieiiriiciirecre et 70
6.3.  Rules for Hiring Outside CoNSULANTS ........ccvriririeieieieiciciciciciciccc et 70
APPENDICES ...ttt 72
FORMES ...ttt b bbbttt ettt ettt ettt bbb b b nebeaes 96



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

AUTHORITY
Under the authority vested in the Planning Board of the Town of Ware by Section 81-Q of
Chapter 41 of the General Laws, as amended, and by all subsequent thereto, said Board

hereby adopts these Rules and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land in the Town of
Ware.

PURPOSE

These Subdivision Regulations for the Town of Ware have been enacted for the purpose of
protecting the safety, convenience and welfare of the inhabitants of Ware by regulating the
laying out and construction of ways in subdivisions providing access to the several lots therein,
but which have not become public ways and ensuring sanitary conditions in the subdivisions
and in proper cases parks and open areas. The powers of the Planning Board and of the Board
of Appeals under these Regulations shall be exercised with due regard for: the provision of
adequate access to all of the lots in a subdivision by ways that will be safe and convenient for
travel; will provide safe and convenient access for all users of all ages and abilities, by all
modes of transportation including pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, public transportation
users, and delivery and emergency vehicle operators, for minimizing congestion in such ways
and in the adjacent public ways; for reducing danger to life and limb in the operation of motor
vehicles or travel by foot, bus, bike or wheelchair; for securing safety in the case of fire, flood,
panic and other emergencies; for ensuring compliance with the applicable Zoning Bylaws of
the Town of Ware; for securing adequate provision for water, sewerage, drainage,
underground utility service, street lighting, police, fire and other requirements where
necessary in a subdivision; for coordinating the ways in a subdivision with each other, with the
public ways in the Town of Ware and with the ways in neighboring subdivisions.

To the fullest extent reasonable and practicable, all subdivisions shall be designed and
constructed to incorporate the most recent design standards, best practices, policies and
design elements of the Town of Ware Zoning Bylaws, Town of Ware Complete Streets Policy,
and the Wetlands Protection Act.

EFFECT OF THE SUBDIVISION CONTROL LAW

These rules and regulations shall include Section 81k to 81GG inclusive of Chapter 41 of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts General Laws as if these sections were set forth herein at
length.



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of these Rules and Regulations, unless a contrary intention clearly appears,
the terms and words defined in Section 81-L of Chapter 41 of the General Laws shall have the
meaning given therein. The following other terms and words shall have the following meaning:

ABUTTING OWNER: The owner(s) of property which is contiguous to the property being
subdivided and the owner(s) of property with frontage immediately across a public way from
the property being subdivided. This will be identified from the assessors' records at the time
of application.

ACRE: A unit of land equal to 43,560 square feet.

AGRICULTURAL SOILS: Agricultural land with soils designated as prime or of statewide or
local significance by the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) soil surveys.

APPLICANT: Either the owner of the land stated in the application for subdivision or all the
owners where title is held jointly, in common, or in tenancy by the entirety, including
corporations. An agent, representative, or his assigns may act for an owner, provided written
evidence of such fact is submitted. Evidence in the form of a list of their officers and
designated authority to sign legal documents shall be required for a corporation.

APPLICATION: The application for the approval of a proposed subdivision or resubdivision of
land, preliminary or definitive, or for an endorsement of an "approval not required”, or "ANR"
plan" (Found on the Town of Ware Planning & Community Department Webpage).

APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED (ANR): Subdivisions that result in new parcels with frontage along
existing roadways. This type of subdivision does not require approval from the Planning Board

APPROVED AND ENDORSED BY PLANNING BOARD: As applied to a plan or other
instrument required or authorized by the subdivision control law to be recorded, shall mean,
bearing a certification or endorsement signed by a majority of the members of a planning
board, or by its chairman or clerk or any other person authorized by it to certify or endorse its
approval or other action and named in a written statement to the register of deeds and
recorder of the land court, signed by a majority of the board.

BOARD: The Planning Board of the Town of Ware.
CMR: The Code of Massachusetts Regulations.

COMPLETE STREETS: Roads that are designed for all modes of transit, including vehicles,
public transportation, biking and walking, for people of all abilities. Design considerations
include bike or bus lanes, road narrowing, sidewalks, crosswalks, and facilities such as covered
bus stops or bicycle parking. Please reference the Town of Ware's Complete Streets Policy.



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

CONSULTANTS or CONSULTING SERVICES: Includes, but is not limited to, architects,
biologists and other environmental experts, chemists, engineers, geologists, landscape
architects, planners, lawyers, sanitarians, and surveyors.

DEAD END STREET (CUL-DE-SAC): A street which joins another street at only one end with
only one outlet and having an appropriate terminal for the safe and convenient reversal of
traffic movement.

DETENTION BASIN: An excavated basin for the short-term detention of stormwater runoff
that allows a controlled release, typically through a combination of pipes and weirs sized to
provide a certain discharge rate.

DEVELOPER: Not necessarily the owner of the land, but the person, persons, or corporation
responsible for the subdivision application and development. This is interchangeable with
APPLICANT and SUBDIVIDER. The developer may or may not be the original applicant, and
may be a subsequent owner of the subdivision.

DEVELOPMENT: Any construction or grading activities conducted on real estate.

EASEMENT: A right to use or control real property owned by another for a specified purpose,
and must be recorded at the Registry of Deeds.

ENGINEER: Any person who is currently registered by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
to perform professional civil engineering services.

GENERAL LAWS (MGL): The General Laws of Massachusetts. In case of a rearrangement of
the General Laws, any citation of particular sections of the General Laws shall be applicable to
the corresponding sections in the new codification.

IMPROVEMENT: Any change to the existing conditions of a subdivision site for the purpose of
complying with these regulations or rendering the site suitable for development and
habitation. As used in these regulations, improvements include, but are not limited to,
construction and installation of roadways, paved streets, berms, gutters, sidewalks, utilities,
street signs, monuments, shade trees, drainage facilities, erosion and sedimentation control
measures, fire ponds, sewage and water systems, buildings, earth filling or removal, seeding,
and grading.

LANDSCAPING: Changing, rearranging, or adding to the original vegetation or scenery of a
piece of land to produce a desired aesthetic effect appropriate to the site.

LOT: An area of land in one ownership, with definitive boundaries, used, or available for use,
as the site of one or more buildings.



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

MAXIMUM EXTENT PRACTICABLE (MEP): Refers to the extent of efforts to comply with local
post-construction stormwater management requirements. Elements of MEP indicate serious
intent to comply and include selecting and implementing design elements to address site
restrictions. MEP is defined as the following:

e Proponents of development/redevelopment projects have made all reasonable efforts
to meet the applicable Massachusetts Stormwater Standards;

e They have made a complete evaluation of possible stormwater management measures
stormwater BMPs, and environmentally sensitive site design that minimizes land
disturbance and impervious surfaces; and,

e If notin full compliance with the applicable Standards, they are implementing the
highest practicable level of stormwater management.

MUNICIPAL SERVICE: Public utilities furnished by the Town in which a subdivision is located,
such as water, sewerage, gas, and electricity.

OPEN SPACE: Property within a subdivision designated to be deeded by the developer to the
Town, homeowner’s association or other approved agency, or to be maintained by the
developer or owner in an undeveloped state in a manner approved by the Planning Board.
Such open space is to be used for passive or active recreation, agriculture, forestry, rare and
endangered species habitat, natural or scenic vistas, unique natural or cultural features, or
greenways. Such open space shall be retained in substantially a natural, wild or open
condition, or in a landscaped condition in such a manner as to allow to a significant extent the
preservation of wildlife or other natural resources. Open space shall be contiguous areas
containing a high ratio of interior area to edge area. Open space shall contain to the greatest
extent possible soils uniquely suited to agricultural use and that further create greenway
corridors to establish linkages in landscape. Such areas shall be of adequate size and
configuration to accommodate the intended use, and shall not include narrow or irregular
pieces of land which are remnants from the layout of lots, streets, or drainage structures.
Open space does not include areas designated for sediment control, erosion control, or storm
water control, nor does it include wetland resource areas. Such areas are considered part of
the subdivision structure, and are not intended to be for recreation.

OWNER: The owner of record as shown at the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds, Land
Court, or Probate Court.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE: A guarantee, in the form of a surety bond, cash, savings
passbook, covenant, negotiable securities or lender's agreement, by the developer to be used
to complete subdivision improvements if the developer does not complete the improvements
as promised, as required by MGL c. 41, Section 81U.



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

PLAN, DEFINITIVE: A proposed plan of a subdivision submitted by the applicant to be
recorded in the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds or Land Court when approved by the
Planning Board.

PLAN, FINAL: A proposed plan showing all buildings (not more than one building to be used
for dwelling purposes) per building lot, to be approved by the Planning Board as a
prerequisite to obtaining building permits.

PLAN, PRELIMINARY: A plan of a subdivision submitted by the applicant showing sufficient
information to form a clear basis for discussion and clarification of its general contents and for
the preparation of a Definitive Plan.

POST CONSTRUCTION IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA: The final impervious cover on the
SITE.

RECORDED: Recorded in the Registry of Deeds of Hampshire County except that, as affecting
registered land, it shall mean filed with the Recorder of the Land Court.

REGISTER OF DEEDS: The Register of Deeds of Hampshire County and, when appropriate,
shall include the Recorder of the Land Court.

REGISTRY OF DEEDS: The Registry of Deeds of Hampshire County and, when appropriate,
the Land Court.

RETENTION BASIN: An excavated basin for the retention of stormwater runoff that is
designed for infiltration or ponding and evaporation.

RIGHT-OF-WAY: That portion of land which is or is intended to be made available for the
construction of roadways, ditches, drainage structures and utility lines and is to be conveyed
to the Town in the case of a proposed Town road, or conveyed to an association charged with
maintenance of such right-of-way in the case of a private road, including but not limited to the
traveled portion and all adjacent land encumbered or intended to be encumbered by all
necessary easements. The form and content of the instrument of conveyance shall be subject
to the approval of the Town Counsel, at the option of the Planning Board.

ROADWAY: That portion of a way which is designed and constructed or intended to be

constructed for vehicular travel, also known as the traveled portion of the way. See also
STREET.

SITE: The area extent of construction activities, including but not limited to the creation of
new impervious cover and improvement of existing impervious cover, excluding
redevelopment activities that are exclusively limited to maintenance and improvement of
existing roadways as described under REDEVELOPMENT above.



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: The land in the floodplain subject to a one percent or
greater chance of flooding in a given year. The special flood hazard area contains all Zones A
and A1-A30 as determined from the most recently prepared Flood Insurance Rate Maps, and
subsequent revisions, and contains all land within the Flood Plain Overlay District on the
Official Zoning Map of the Town of Ware.

STABILIZATION: Structural or vegetative treatment applied to an area in order to prevent soil
erosion.

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS: Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges,
Massachusetts Department of Transportation, most current as amended/supplemented
standard edition.

STORMWATER POLLUTION: Occurs when rain that falls on streets, parking lots and other
land carries pollution into lakes, rivers, streams or other water bodies. Pollutants can include
oil and fuel from vehicles, fertilizers and pesticides from yards or agricultural lands, pet waste,
and soil picked by erosion.

STREET: A public or private way either shown on a plan approved in accordance with these
rules and regulations or otherwise qualifying a lot for access and frontage under MGL c. 41,
Section 81L.

STREET, COLLECTOR: A street designed to receive and distribute traffic from and to various
sub-areas and neighborhoods, and which will carry a substantial volume of traffic generally,
over 400 vehicles per day.

STREET, MINOR: A street which primarily provides access to adjacent land uses. It may be
either a through-street or a cul-de-sac.

STREET, MAJOR: a street having the primary purpose of carrying through traffic and the
secondary purpose of providing access to abutting property.

STREET, PRIMARY: A street which receives and distributes traffic from and to various subareas
within a given region, and receives traffic from a given residential neighborhood or industrial
area and carries it to an arterial highway. These roads run through developed areas or connect
concentrations of development, and carry significant volumes of traffic.

STREET, SECONDARY: A street which primarily provides access to adjacent land uses and
which serves to connect minor streets with major streets.

SUBDIVISION: Subdivision shall mean the division of a tract of land into two or more lots and

shall include resubdivision, and when appropriate to the context, shall relate to the process of
subdivision or the land or territory subdivided; provided however that the division of a tract of
land in two or more lots shall not be deemed to constitute a subdivision within the meaning of

9



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

the subdivision control law if, at the time when it was made, every lot within the tract so
divided has frontage on:

¢ A public way or a way which the Clerk of the Town of Ware certifies is maintained and
used as a public way; or

¢ A way shown on a plan theretofore approved and endorsed in accordance with the
Subdivision Control Law; or

¢ A way in existence when the Subdivision Control Law became effective in the Town of
Ware, having, in the opinion of the Planning Board, sufficient construction to provide
for the needs of vehicular traffic in relation to the proposed use of the land abutting
thereon or served thereby, and for the installation of municipal services to serve such
land and the buildings erected or to be erected thereon.

o All of which have adequate Access from Public way

SUBDIVISION CONTROL LAW: Refers to Sections 81-K to 81 GG, inclusive of Chapter 41, of
the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, entitled "Subdivision Control" as
last amended.

SUBDIVISION TYPE I: A subdivision for residential uses.
SUBDIVISION TYPE lI: A subdivision for commercial uses.
SUBDIVISION TYPE llI; A subdivision for industrial uses

SURVEYOR: Currently Registered Land Surveyor in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and
in good standing.

WARE: The Town of Ware, Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

UTILITIES: Public utilities furnished by off-site providers, such as water, sewer, gas, electricity,
telephone, television, or other media.

WAY: A right-of-way or means of access to a lot. A public way is a way which has been
accepted by, and the land owned by, the Town of Ware, or by other means created as a public
street. Any other way (private way) is a way over land which is owned by a private party but
which is set forth by deed covenant, deed description or by other means as a private way.

ZONING: No subdivision rule may affect the size, shape, width, frontage, or use of lots. All
subdivisions will fully comply with the Town of Ware Zoning By-Law.

10



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

SECTION 1. GENERAL

1.1. Limitation of One Dwelling Unit per Lot

Not more than one building for use for dwelling purposes shall be erected or placed or
converted to use as such on any lot in the Town of Ware.

1.2. Compliance with Other Permits Required

a) Zoning. Subdivisions shall meet the requirements pertaining to lot size, frontage,
and all other requirements under existing zoning laws. No subdivision rules can
dictate the size, shape, width, frontage or use of lots except that they shall be in
compliance with all applicable zoning requirements.

b) Wetlands Protection Act. All projects shall meet the requirements of the Ware
Conservation Commission Local Wetlands Protection Bylaw as well as the state of
Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act.

c) Any other applicable municipal, state or federal required permits or approvals

1.3. Plan Believed Not to Require Approval (ANR)

1.3.1. Filing Procedure

Any person who wishes to cause to be recorded in the Registry of Deeds or to
be filed with the Land Court a plan of land and who believes that his plan does
not require approval under the Subdivision Control Laws may submit his plan
and application (Found on Town Website) to the Board or to the Town Clerk
accompanied by the necessary evidence to show that the plan does not require
approval. Said plan shall be submitted either by delivery or by registered or
certified mail. Receipt of the plan by the Town Clerk or Board shall constitute
the date of submission. The applicant will also file the appropriate filing fee to
cover the cost of handling reviews and public meeting expenses (contact the
Planning & Community Development Department for current fee schedule).

If the Board determines that the plan does not require approval, it shall within
twenty-one (21) days and without a public hearing endorse on the plan the
words "Planning Board Approval under the Subdivision Control Law Not
Required." If the Board determines that the plan does require approval under
the Subdivision Control Law, it shall within twenty-one (21) days of submission

11



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

of said plan so inform the applicant and return the reproducible original of the
plan. The Board shall notify the Town Clerk of its action.

Electronic copies must be submitted in a digital format acceptable to the town.
a) The applicant shall:
e file with the Board:
e A fully completed ANR Application
e The required Filing Fee
e 1 mylar copy of said plan
e 4 paper copies of said plan
e give written notice to the Town Clerk by delivery or by registered
mail, postage prepaid, that they have submitted such a plan with the
Planning Board.

b) If the Board determines that the plan does not require approval under the
Subdivision Control Law, the Board will vote to approve and endorse the
plan.

c) After endorsement by the Board the applicant shall file the endorsed mylar
with the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds.

d) If the Board determines that the plan does require approval, the Board will
vote to deny the plan and file a written statement with the Town Clerk, and
mail a copy to the applicant, of its determination including its reason for
denial.

Before the Board makes its determination, it shall review or have a consultant
review the correctness of all street information and compliance with the Town
of Ware Zoning Bylaws. If, in the judgment of the Board, consulting services are
necessary or appropriate, the applicant shall be responsible to cover the full
cost of such services prior to the endorsement of the plan.

Where the physical condition or width of a public way, from which the lots
shown on the plan have their access, is considered by the Board to be
inadequate either to provide for emergency services or to carry the traffic which
is expected, in the opinion of the Board, to be generated by such lots, the
Board shall determine that the plan does require approval under the
Subdivision Control Law.

Where the Board determines that in its opinion adequate access (as
contemplated by section 81M of the Subdivision Control Law) does not exist,
then the Board shall determine that the plan does require approval under the
Subdivision Control Law.

12



1.3.2.

Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

If the Board fails to act upon a submitted plan within twenty-one (21) days after

its submission, it shall be deemed to have determined that approval under the

Subdivision Control Laws is not required as certified by the Town Clerk.

Plan Contents

The plan shall be prepared by a Massachusetts Registered Land Surveyor in

good standing, shall be clearly and legibly drawn with waterproof ink upon

mylar at a scale not smaller than one (1) inch equals forty (40) feet or a scale

appropriate to project proposed, with the sheet size not exceeding thirty-six

(36) inches by twenty-four (24) inches, and shall contain the following

information:

a)

b)

North arrow, date, scale, legend, locus, and title, “Subdivision Approval
Not Required”.

The names and addresses of the owner/s of record at the time of
submission of the application, the applicant, and Land Surveyor
(including the official seal).

Locations, names, lines and widths of all existing streets, sidewalks,
publicly owned trails and shared use paths, and any common or public
areas.

Location and setbacks of all existing structures on the proposed site.
Location, dimensions and purpose of all easements, both existing and
proposed, within and adjacent to the land in question.

The plan shall show boundary lines, dimensions of all subject lots, sites
of divisions, lot areas (in acres or square feet, as appropriate), with all
lots designated numerically and in sequences.

Location of all monuments properly identified as to whether existing or
proposed.

Frontage dimensions of all lots created and the dimensions of any
frontage remaining on the original subdivided parcels, including the area
of any subdivided parcels with a structure.

Suitable space to record the action of the Board and the signatures of
members.

Book and page number from the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds
or title reference of subject property.

A notation reading “Endorsement of this Plan does not certify
compliance with the zoning required for a building lot.”

Current Zoning District.

m) Wetlands and uplands.

13



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

SECTION 2. PROCEDURE FOR THE SUBMISSION AND APPROVAL OF PLANS

2.1.

2.2.

Coordination of Plan Reviews with Other Required Approvals and Permits

It is strongly advised, where projects require additional approvals from other
permitting authorities, that such approvals be obtained either prior to submitting
applications to the Planning Board or are submitted to the other permitting
authorities at the same time that applications are submitted to the Planning Board. It
is important to note that other permitting authority’s processes may have timelines
that are not coterminous with the Planning Board’s Subdivision Approval process.

Pre-Submission Review

Prior to investing in extensive professional design efforts for subdivision plans, it may
be beneficial for the prospective applicant to discuss his/her ideas with the Planning
and Community Development Staff. It may be useful in avoiding problems at a later
stage of the subdivision review process.

Any person engaged in the process of pre-submission review is strongly recommended,
but not required, to prepare a Voluntary Sketch Plan that will include the following:

a) Existing Resources / Site Analysis Map: A map which identifies, locates, and
describes noteworthy features to be designed around through sensitive
subdivision layouts, such as vegetation, wetlands, steep slopes, agricultural soils,
historic or cultural features, threatened or endangered species, unusual
geological formations, and scenic views or viewsheds.

b) Voluntary Sketch Plan: A simple and inexpensive drawing prepared by a
professional landscape architect, architect, planner, site designer or engineer,
which illustrates conceptual layouts of house lots, streets, stormwater
management, conservation areas and other improvements. Ideally, this is
based on the Existing Resources/Site Analysis Map and reflects comments

received from Town officials.

Contact between the applicant and Planning Board outside of the formal plan
submission process should be limited. Any meetings between applicants and Planning
Board members must be conducted at a posted public meeting. It should be noted
that any comments or suggestions made by the Board are purely advisory and they are
not bound by them in their review and decisions on any subsequently submitted
Preliminary or Definitive Plans.

2.3. Preliminary Plan

2.3.1 General
14



2.3.2

Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

A Preliminary Plan of a Type | subdivision may be submitted by the applicant for
discussion and action by the Board.

A preliminary plan must be submitted for Type Il and Type Il subdivisions. The
submission of such a Preliminary Plan will enable the applicant, the Planning
Board, or other municipal agencies, and owners of property abutting the
subdivision to discuss and clarify any problems of such a subdivision before a
Definitive Plan is prepared. It is strongly recommended that a Preliminary Plan be
filed in all cases, except those cases where pre-submission review has adequately
clarified all issues.

To the fullest extent reasonable and practicable, all subdivisions shall be
designed and constructed to incorporate the most recent design standards, best
practices, policies and design elements of the Town of Ware's Complete Streets
Policy.

At the time of submission, the center line of the proposed roadway shall be
adequately and accurately staked or flagged on the site, and the individual
proposed lots shall be identified in some manner, sufficient for identification by
the Planning Board members and Town officials when site visits are made

Filing Procedure
The procedure for filing a Preliminary Plan is as follows:

a) Any person who submits a Preliminary Plan shall do so to the office of
Planning & Community Development, or by certified or registered mail to
the office of Planning & Community Development, postage prepaid. A
notice filed with the Town Clerk by delivery or by registered mail, postage
prepaid, that such a plan has been submitted to the Planning Board.
Planning & Community Development Department shall receive the filing
fee and then deliver copies of the Preliminary Plan to the Board of Health
and Town Clerk. Receipt of such plan by the Town Clerk shall constitute
the date of submission. If mailed, the date of receipt (as shown on the
returned registered mail receipt) shall be the date of submission of the
plan. Such plan shall be accompanied by the completed Application for
Approval of a Preliminary Plan (found on Town’s Website) and a filing fee
(Contact the Planning & Community Development Department for
current fee schedule).

b) The applicant shall file the original drawing (s) or suitable reproducible (s)
and eight (8) copies with the Board and two (2) copies with the Board of
Health. Said plan shall be prepared by a currently Registered

15



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

Massachusetts Engineer and currently Registered Massachusetts Land
Surveyor in good standing. Seven (7) additional reduced scale copies on
11"x17" paper shall also be filed with the Planning Board.

A list of anticipated requested waivers from the Subdivision Rules and
Regulations (See Appendix E)

In order to make application information available on the Town's web site,
and for presentation purposes at public meetings/hearings, all
applications (Application for Approval of a Preliminary Plan, Preliminary
Development Impact Statement, Waiver Requests, Preliminary
Engineering Plans, supportive information) shall also be submitted in a
digital format and include:

¢ textinformation shall be submitted in a format suitable for reading
as a Microsoft Word document or PDF Adobe Acrobat file.

e engineering plans shall be submitted in a PDF format.

e other plans, drawings and photographs must be submitted in a
similar format.

Any additional expenses for outside consultants for professional review of
the plans, survey, or inspections shall also be paid by applicant in
accordance with the PLANNING BOARD RULES AND REGULATIONS and
M.G.L. CHPT 44 SEC. 53G.

2.3.3 Contents

The Preliminary Plan shall be drawn at a scale of one inch to forty feet (1"=40")

or such other scale as the Board may accept to show details clearly and

adequately on a sheet of paper twenty-four by thirty-six inches (24" x 36"). The

Plan shall include the following:

a)

The subdivision name, boundaries, north point, date, scale, legend and
title “Preliminary Plan”

The names and addresses of the owners of record, the applicant and the
engineer or surveyor.

A locus plan overlaid on the most recent MassGIS orthophotos or other
best available high-quality low-elevation air photos.

Existing and proposed lines of streets, ways, sidewalks, trails, shared use
paths, and easements and any public or common areas within the
subdivision, in a general manner.

16



Working Draft Friday, July 1, 2022

e) The proposed system of drainage, including adjacent existing natural
waterways, in a general manner.

f) The proposed method of sanitary sewage disposal and system and
water distribution system (including general soils information), in a
general manner.

g) The approximate boundary lines of proposed lots with approximate
areas and dimensions.

h) The names, approximate location and widths of adjacent streets.

i) The topography of the land, in a general manner.

j)  Land subject to protection/permitting under the Wetlands Protection Act.

k) An index plan at a scaled of one inch equals two hundred feet (1"=200"),
when multiple sheets are used.

) A key plan at a scale of one inch equals one thousand feet (1"=1000").

m) In the case of a subdivision covering less than all of the land owned by
the subdivider, a plan showing in a general manner the proposed overall
development of all said land.

2.3.4 Action by the Board

Within forty-five (45) days of submission of the Preliminary Plan, the Board shall
take one of the following actions:

a) Approve the plan as presented;
b) Approve the plan with modifications;
c) Disapprove the plan.

and shall file its decision with the Town Clerk and notify the applicant (certified
mail). Failure of the Board to file its decision on a Preliminary Plan within 45 days
after submission shall be deemed to constitute approval of such a plan. In the
case of disapproval, the reasons why shall be stated. Approval of the plan does
not constitute the approval of a subdivision and no Register of Deeds shall record
a Preliminary Plan.

Approval of the Preliminary Plan by the Board does not constitute approval of a
subdivision but does facilitate the procedure in securing approval of the
Definitive Plan. In addition, such approval does not in any way authorize the
owner to proceed with construction of roadways and/or other work in the
subdivision.

17



	7-7-2022 PB Agenda Stamped
	6-16-2022 Planning Board Minutes
	13
	TOWN OF WARE

	SPR-2022-03 Site Plans Compressed
	HPSCANNER1484
	HPSCANNER1485
	HPSCANNER1486
	HPSCANNER1487
	HPSCANNER1488
	HPSCANNER1489
	HPSCANNER1490
	HPSCANNER1491

	Proposed Fee Changes PB
	Fees - proposed

	Proposed SP Fee Level List
	sp permit levels - proposed

	Subdivision Regulations - Title Page to Page 17
	AUTHORITY
	PURPOSE
	DEFINITIONS
	SECTION 1. GENERAL
	1.1. Limitation of One Dwelling Unit per Lot
	1.2. Compliance with Other Permits Required
	1.3. Plan Believed Not to Require Approval (ANR)

	SECTION 2. PROCEDURE FOR THE SUBMISSION AND APPROVAL OF PLANS
	2.2. Pre-Submission Review
	2.3. Preliminary Plan



